ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE SPECI AL COW TTEE ON | N- STATE ENERGY
February 28, 2013
7:30 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senator Cick Bishop, Co-Chair
Senat or John Coghill, Co-Chair
Senator Peter M cciche

Senat or Denni s Egan

Senator Bill W el echowski
VEMBERS ABSENT

Al'l nmenbers present

OTHER LEQ SLATORS PRESENT

Senator Fred Dyson
Senator Cathy G essel

COW TTEE CALENDAR

PRESENTATI ON:  LONG- TERM PERSPECTI VE ON ENERGY | SSUES
- HEARD

PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON

No previous action to record

W TNESS REGQ STER

Bl LL SHEFFI ELD, representing hinself

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presentation on long-term energy issues in

Al aska.

JOSEPH GRI FFI TH, General Manager

Mat anuska El ectric Associ ation

Pal mer, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presentation on long-term energy issues in
Al aska.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

SENATE | SE COW TTEE -1- February 28, 2013



7:30: 42 AM

CO- CHAIR CLICK BISHOP called the Senate Special Committee on In-
State Energy neeting to order at 7:30 a.m Present at the call
to order were Senators Egan, W el echowski, and Co-Chair Bishop.

CO- CHAIR BI SHOP wel coned Senator Dyson and Senator G essel to
t he neeting.

PRESENTATI ON: Long Term Perspective on Energy |ssues

7:31:32 AM

CO CHAIR BISHOP welconed Bill Sheffield and Joe Giffith., He
explained that former governor Sheffield would provide an
overview of an in-state gasline and M. Giffith would address
the state of the Railbelt electrical system

7:32:31 AM

Bl LL SHEFFI ELD, fornmer governor, explained that his appearance
before the commttee was part of a 28-presentation tour around
Al aska. He said his overview would address what could be done
for the present and future citizens of Al aska. He said Al aska
was on the precipice and nany conmunities were already over the
edge of an energy crisis. He explained that too nany Al askan
residents were struggling with high energy costs and decl ared
that Al aska's energy crisis would only get worse.

7:32:54 AM
SENATOR M CCI CHE j oi ned t he neeti ng.

MR. SHEFFI ELD stated that Bush comunities were paying high
prices for basic conforts and Fairbanks was burning firewood for
heat that was affecting air quality. He said the natural gas
production decline from Cook Inlet had caused the |oss of
hundreds of jobs on the Kenai Peninsula and would drive up
donestic and commercial energy costs in just a couple of years.

He explained that the solution was an in-state gas pipeline to
tap into the trenendous reserves already proven. He proclained
that the in-state gasline could happen if Al askans nustered up
the political will to do it. He said the act of building the in-
state gas pipeline would benefit both the present population via
job creation and future generations through | ower energy costs.

7:34:57 AM

MR. SHEFFI ELD said the Al aska Stand Al one Pipeline (ASAP) could
provide the follow ng benefits:

SENATE | SE COW TTEE - 2- February 28, 2013



* Reduce Fairbanks' air quality problem

 Allow Flint HIl Refinery (FHR) in Fairbanks to return to
full production and elimnate its need to inport expensive
product; FHR averaged 130 railcar shipnments per day,
current average was 20 railcar shipments per day.

e Provide affordable energy to the proposed gold mne in
Li vengood.

« Provide affordable energy to the Donlin Gold M ne.

e Provide affordable energy to Bethel if the Donlin Gold M ne
recei ved gas.

e Cut Alaska Railroad's operating costs with |ower energy
prices and increased FHR deliveries.

e Reopen the Nikiski Agrium Plant. He noted that 325 jobs
di sappeared when Cook Inlet gas supplies shrank.

7:38: 27 AM

He said barring sone future |arge discovery, Cook Inlet gas
supplies would continue to dimnish while Southcentral faced the
possibility of inporting gas within a couple of years. He stated
that Alaska had 35 trillion cubic feet of proven gas reserves on
the North Slope. He said Alaska had talked about the big
di anmeter gas line for some tine, but the advent of fracking had
fl ooded the gas market in the Lower 48 and the project had to be
r et hought .

He noted that the Al aska Gas Devel opnent Corporation (AGC) had
advanced ASAP. He said Governor Parnell and AGDC President Dan
Fauske were to be comended for the progress nade with ASAP. He
stated that ASAP's environnental study showed significant
progress, the right-of-way for the pipeline was all but secured,
and financing could be arranged one way or another. He
recommended that the state pay for ASAP outright in order to
reduce tariffs and reduce end wuser <costs. He noted that
declining oil production mght not allow for the state to
entirely pay for ASAP.

7:41.: 03 AM

He declared that the |onger Al aska avoided nmaking a decision to
go forward, the nore expensive ASAP would get. He noted that
AGDC predicted that every year of delay would rai se ASAP s cost
by $200 mllion. He explained that inmrediate project approval
would involve an additional four vyears to secure permts,
conpl ete engineering, and finalize design before construction
could begin. He remarked that delays to proceed with the |arge

SENATE | SE COW TTEE - 3- February 28, 2013



dianeter pipeline project had increased estinmates from $25
billion to a high range of $65 billion.

MR. SHEFFIELD stated that AGDC required the legislation to
provide the tools in order to hold a successful open season for
solid market commtnents, follow through to build ASAP, and
provide gas to Southcentral by 2019. He noted that Governor
Parnell said in his State of the State Address that AGCDC
| egislation was a priority and |egislation would add horse power
to AGDC s engine.

He announced that he was not an investor or had any operational
interest in ASAP. He said he had been an Al askan for nore than
60 years and cared deeply about the present and future needs of
Al aska. He said he believed it was tine to quit studying and get
on with investing in ASPA to provide affordable energy for
Al askans.

7:44:51 AM
CO CHAI R BI SHOP asked what the single nost inportant thing to do
if the state decided to nove forward with ASAP.

MR. SHEFFI ELD answered that the nost inportant thing a state
could do was bui |l d its i nfrastructure, mai ntai n its
infrastructure, and provide education. He said the state should
provide the infrastructure to allow the private sector to cone
in and provide jobs. He stated that gas was for Al askans and oil
was for the state budget. He remarked that ASAP was the nost
i nportant project that Al aska coul d do.

7:46: 51 AM
CO- CHAIR BISHOP recognized that Co-Chair Coghill and Senator
M cci che joined the neeting.

SENATOR M CCICHE stated that he agreed with M. Sheffield and
noted that one of the reasons he was in the |egislature was due
to his frustration with gas. He declared that gas was a key
issue for the state and he asked Al askans to fairly evaluate the
options. He said parochialism was a big problem in Al aska and
folks had a hard tine getting past what it would take to get a
gasline going. He remarked that the visionaries that built the
Trans- Al aska Pi peline System (TAPS) created the state's current
econony. He stated that a nunber-two industry would be created
t he second the gasline valve was opened, no matter what pipeline
di aneter size. He asserted that Al aska was m ssing the boat and
had been for a long tinme. He explained that like a 401K a
gasline project was not about market timng, it was about tine

SENATE | SE COW TTEE -4- February 28, 2013



in the nmarket. He noted that Al aska mssed out on sone high
price opportunities from natural gas comobdity prices and would
face low price challenges, but a gasline project's average val ue
over thirty or forty years would allow the state to cone out on

top. He stated that if a large dianmeter line was going to
happen, it would have to happen soon. He declared that not
nmoving forward with the large dianeter |line would require the

state to get behind another option. He remarked that too nmany
Al askans were in need and too many jobs were being mssed. He
stated that margins did not work to drive projects with diesel
and its negative inpact affected nom and-pop opportunities as
well as the large industrial sector. He said he hoped that
Al aska could nove forward and thanked M. Sheffield for his
conment s.

MR. SHEFFI ELD replied that it was inportant to fund ASAP and get
to open season. He said Al aska was never going to know anything
beyond what was currently known until open season. He expl ai ned
t hat open season was where all of the decisions were made.

CO CHAI R BI SHOP t hanked M. Sheffield for his presentation.

7:50: 43 AM
CO-CHAIR BISHOP announced that the commttee would stand at
ease.

7:52: 33 AM

JOSEPH GRI FFI TH, CGener al Manager , Mat anuska El ectric
Association, noted that he was also the CEO for the Al aska
Rai | belt Cooperative Transm ssion & Electric Conpany (ARCTEC).
He noted that he was Commander at El nendorf Air Force Base and
met fornmer governor Sheffield during his assignnment. He reveal ed
that he had worked for Senator Dyson as well. He stated that he
spent 25 years in the energy business; 22 years at Chugach
El ectric Association (CEA) and three years at WMatanuska Electric
Associ ati on ( MEA).

He detailed that the Railbelt was nmade up of four private
or gani zati ons and two  rnuni ci pal electric utilities. He
identified the Railbelt utilities as foll ows:

« Anchorage Municipal Light & Power (AM.P).
 Chugach Electric Association (CEA).

» (Golden Valley Electric Association (GVEA).
e Honer Electric Association (HEA).

» Mtanuska Electric Association (MEA).

SENATE | SE COW TTEE - 5- February 28, 2013



« Seward Electric System (SES)

MR GRIFFITH said all of the utilities were not-for-profits, a
key factor that affected future power costs.

7:56: 07 AM
He explained that the parts of an electrical system were:
generati on, transm ssi on, and distribution. He addressed

transm ssion as foll ows:

e Connected all of the utilities together.

e Facilitated economc dispatch of power by bringing the
cheapest power online first.

e Power transfer to facilitate constant | oad shifting.
* Reserve sharing to provide power if generation was |ost.

He noted that power transfer and reserve sharing was worth
billions of dollars a year to utilities. He said electrical
custoners would pay higher rates wthout power transfer and
reserve sharing.

7:59: 05 AM

He explained that all of the utilities had or would soon have
their own generation capabilities. He said the investnment by the
utilities was about $1  billion. He explained the power
generation as foll ows:

CEA: Beluga Power Plant (BPP), South Anchorage, |GI, Cooper
Lake Hydro, and Ekl utna Hydro.

 AMLP: Plant 1, Plant 2, and Ekl utna Hydro.

 GVEA: North Pole, Eva Creek Wnd, Healy Coal, Aurora Coal
(contract), Battery Energy Storage System (BESS), Zehnder,
and Delta.

e MEA: Eklutna Generation Station and EKI utna Hydro.
* HEA: N ki ski Conbi ned Cycle, Soldotna, and Bernice Lake.
« SES: Seward Pl ant.

* Note: Al utilities participated in the Bradley Lake
Hydroel ectric Project (BLHP).

8:02:41 AM

MR. CGRIFFI TH addressed the Railbelt's energy situation and noted
that gas was a problem He explained that it was critical to
never let the Railbelt's gas system fail. He stated that
Rail belt wutilities where changing their investnents and the
ability to dispatch power would affect the transm ssion system

SENATE | SE COW TTEE - 6- February 28, 2013



from Fairbanks to Homer. He noted that BPP would no |onger be
running in load-following node as a buffer in the mddle of the
Rai | belt and BLHP. He said the BPP change was due to HEA and MEA
power plants coming online. He remarked that any successful,
nodern econony demanded reasonably priced power.

8:04: 33 AM
CO CHAIR COGHI LL asked when the HEA and MEA plants would cone
onl i ne.

MR. GRIFFITH answered that HEA s N kiski plant was online and
their Soldotna facility would be online in six nonths. He said
the real problem would occur when MEA s Eklutna Plant cones
online and a portion of BPP shuts down, resulting in the
inability to buffer BLHP sales coming north. He said the
Rail belt was a year and a half away from having a real problem
to deal wth and that was inadequate tinme to fix the
transm ssion system He stated that the Railbelt would have to
do sonme heroics in response to the changes.

CO- CHAIR COGHI LL noted that Healy Cean Coal Power (HCCP) plant
woul d be comng online and asked if that would help stabilize
power for the Railbelt.

MR. CGRIFFITH replied that HCCP would benefit Fairbanks when 50
negawatts was added.

CO CHAI R COGHI LL asked if HCCP was com ng south
MR. CRIFFITH replied that HCCP' s power could cone south.
CO CHAI R COGHI LL responded that he wanted to confirmthe timng.

MR. GRIFFI TH answered that the crisis faced by the Rail belt was
fuel and transm ssion congestion. He stated that the crisis was
in the near term three to five years. He asserted that
sonmet hing had to be done to save the Rail belt.

CO CHAIR COGHI LL asked to verify that the first project was from
BLHP going north into Anchorage.

MR GRIFFITH answered yes. He said the problem was equally
probl ematic from Anchorage to Fairbanks. He explained that it
would be a little trickier when HCCP was brought online. He
addressed long term issues when the Susitna-Wtana Hydroel ectric
Project (SWHP) cane online and the need to transmt a trenendous

SENATE | SE COW TTEE -7- February 28, 2013



anount of power in both directions, sonething that could not be
presently done.

8:07:15 AM

COCHAIR COGH LL stated that transmi ssion projects were big
dollar itens and noted Anchorage going north would be $200
mllion. He asked what Honmer to Anchorage woul d cost.

MR. GRIFFI TH responded that resolving the entire BLHP constraint
issue in addition to doing a Hydro-Hydro between BLHP and SWHP
would be a $1 billion challenge. He noted that there were
cheaper alternatives if |oad-shed or blackouts were deened
acceptable. He said installing a second underwater high voltage
direct-current (DC) line to BPP would provide near 100 percent
reliability on the southern sector and allow for servicing
wi t hout power interruption. He explained that a study conducted
| ast sunmer advised that a second line be built to BPP

COCHAIR COGHILL asked if the integration cost would be
acceptable for installing a DC line to BPP

MR GRIFFITH answered yes and noted that a DC line was
equivalent to the cost of overhead alternating-current (AC
lines.

COCHAIR BISHOP asked if it was N kola Tesla and George
West i nghouse that were argui ng over AC versus DC

MR GRIFFITH answered yes and noted N kola Tesla was an AC
advocat e.

CO CHAIR BI SHOP stated that Tesla was on the right track because
you could nove nore AC based electricity at a | ower cost.

MR. GRIFFITH responded that nore AC electricity could be noved
nore cheaply, but AC systens resist novenent because of their
cyclic problem that created line loss and that added to its
cost. He explained that DC did not exhibit Iine loss and did not
require special equipnent, but its costs were high and required
|arge facilities on both ends.

8:11: 54 AM

MR CRIFFITH stated that the Railbelt wutilities had a Fuel
Situation Mtigation Effort underway as foll ows:

e Uility group studying potential fixes for the near term
three to five years.

SENATE | SE COW TTEE - 8- February 28, 2013



e Costs prohibitive for interim inportation fix of natural
gas in the near term

» Alaska Stand Al one Pipeline (ASAP) deliveries by 2019.

* North Slope liquid natural gas (LNG trucking was a concept
that could help with Fairbanks' air emssions and hone
heating issues, but would not do a thing for Southcentra
due to volune limtations.

e SWHP's delivery by 2024 with transm ssi on system upgrades.

» Least cost approach in the near term was to generate wth
di esel fuel until Cook Inlet gas supplies inproved.

8:14: 03 AM
MR. GRI FFI TH addressed ot her short-termmtigations as foll ows:

* Decongest the transnission systemto facilitate optinmum use
of BLHP energy and capacity, especially during the sunmer
when it could carry the load; ARCTEC and Al aska Energy
Aut hority ( AEA) were  working on decongesti ng t he
transm ssi on system

e Mre natural gas storage capability, Cook Inlet Natural Gas
Storage Al aska (CINGSA) capacity was 11 to 12 billion cubic
feet (Bcf), but nore was needed.

e Cheaper diesel fuel <could be derived from the state's
royalty oil, but there would be constitutional issues.

e Continual state efforts to foster exploration in Cook Inlet
and to keep an LNG exportation facility open for expanded
mar ket potenti al .

e Smaller, cheaper inportation of LNG from the Lower 48 to
aid the gas systemin the short term

* Inport |ow cost propane from Canada.

COCHAIR COGHILL inquired if the benefit from BLHP' s diversion
upgrade woul d be realized w thout transm ssion upgrades.

MR. GRIFFITH answered yes. He explained that the Battle Creek
wat ershed woul d be diverted with 45,000 negawatt hours added. He
said the added power would be drawn from BLHP, but the added
powered electricity could not be delivered when needed the nost.
He said generation would have to be shut down at other |ocations
in order to get the BLHP power out.

8.16: 45 AM

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI addressed natural gas storage and noted a
need at Beluga. He asked if M. Giffith was aware of the
techni cal aspects for storage at Bel uga.

SENATE | SE COW TTEE - 9- February 28, 2013



MR CRIFFITH replied yes. He said MEA's plant would be on the
Bel uga side due to the pipeline's location. He explained that he
was actively talking to people that had storage capabilities to
buy or rent storage to create a buffer.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked if AMLP and CEA would be helped to
have nore storage on the Bel uga side

MR. GRIFFITH answered that it could because the pipeline could
flow in either direction. He said the Cook Inlet Gas Gathering
System (CIGGS) pipeline ran between Tyonek and Nikiski. He
explained that if a cataclysmc event closed the pipeline, gas
could be noved on the east side of the Kenai Peninsula w thout
i nterruption.

8:20: 00 AM

He addressed | ndependent Power Producers (I1PP) and how they fit
in the Railbelt system He noted that he had spent 25 years
dealing with IPPs in addition to people who thought that they
could produce as cheaply as or better than the Railbelt
utilities. He explained that there was a federal |law called the
Public Uility Regulatory Policies Act (PURPA) that required
utilities to accept electrical power output for a conbined heat
and power facility. He stated that he welcomed any |PP that
wi shed to conpete on a head-up basis with a utility. He noted
that often IPPs could not conpete with the utilities, but they
had a right to state that they were going to be a conbi ned heat
and power facility to sell power as an avoided-cost. He said
there were two kinds of avoided-costs, firm versus non-firm He
explained that firmavoided-cost neant an |PP had backup
reserves and non-firm neant a utility could take what it wanted
from an IPP w thout backup. He detailed that non-firm was |ess
expensive than firm He said nost |IPPs say that they would do
t he conbi ned heat and power approach, a strategy that was a good
one if a market for heat was identified. He noted that the
federal law s intent was for IPPs to first be a heat producer
and secondly as an electricity producer. He disclosed that nost
| PPs get it the other way around as an electricity producer that
uses waste heat, a strategy that was not what PURPA was all
about. He said the Regulatory Commssion of Alaska (RCA
regulations mmc PURPA and require the sane for the state. He
stated that the big issue for IPPs was rates of return and the
econom cs. He said investor owned IPPs required a 10 percent
return or nore to be able to nake it. He noted that co-ops
struggle along with three to five percent because of possessing
a captive market and no sharehol ders.

SENATE | SE COW TTEE -10- February 28, 2013



SENATOR DYSON disclosed that M. Giffith nmade an effort to use
coal as a fuel for MEA's new plant and was stymed by public
opinion in the permtting process. He asked if M. Giffith
coul d expl ain what occurred.

MR. GRIFFITH answered that Senator Dyson was correct. He said
the intent to use coal occurred 10 to 12 years ago. He noted
that he and Brad Evans, CEA's current CEO, conjured up a coal
pl ant phil osophy for the Beluga-Mne Mth facility, 25 mles
west of Beluga. He declared the coal plant would have worked

but politics got in the way. He stated that if the coal plant
woul d have been built, the current electrical situation would be
different. He noted another attenpt for a coal plant in the
Mat anuska- Susitna Valley that failed and ended up being built in
Ekl ut na.

8:24: 44 AM
SENATOR DYSON asked if M. Giffith was convinced that the stack
di scharges were wthin acceptable limts from the technol ogy

currently being | ooked at.

MR. GRIFFITH answered yes. He explained that coal plants were
probably cl eaner today due to stricter rules.

SENATOR DYSON addressed a big power generation plant concept on
the North Slope that would produce high voltage DC electricity
for the Railbelt. He asked if the concept was close enough to
being a potential solution for the Railbelt.

MR GRIFFITH replied that the North Slope power plant was a
feasible project that had to be fully fleshed out. He noted that
building a transmssion line over Atigun Pass wuld be a
chal l enge and noted that a costly proposal was to tunnel under
it. He stated that reserves would be required on the south end
and the project would end up being a matter of noney. He
commented that no power proposals should be taken off the table
until sonething was found that worked.

8:26:30 AM
SENATOR DYSON asked who should be chosen to study the options
regardi ng risks, costs, and cost-benefits.

MR. GRIFFITH responded that AEA should be the entity, but
financial constraints limted their ability to step into the
| eadership role. He explained that if he were governor, he would
have his energy czar sitting at the table with himevery day.

SENATE | SE COW TTEE -11- February 28, 2013



CO- CHAIR BI SHOP said he shared everyone's frustrations on how to
get a single point of command and control structure for Al aska's
energy needs. He explained that politics should be out of it
wi th good business practices used to address energy needs and
avoi d crisis nmanagenent.

MR GRIFFITH replied that he would be happy to share his
t houghts wi th Senat or Bi shop

8:29:33 AM
He presented the ARCTEC 2013 request as foll ows:

e Covernor Parnell had $13.7 mllion in his budget to
elimnate constraints on BLHP

» Covernor Parnell had $95 million in his budget for SWHP

 BLHP's Battle Creek Diversion in BLHP did not get into the
budget; $23.5 million would be required to keep the project
on schedul e.

e Governor Parnell had $25 mllion in his budget for AEA s
Renewabl e Energy Grant Fund; an additional $31 million was
required to keep the program going in 2013.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked about the Battle Creek diversion and
t he amobunt of nmegawatts that woul d be added.

MR CRIFFITH replied that Battle Creek did not add any capacity
to BLHP and limtations were dictated by the size of the
generators. He said 40,000 to 45,000 negawatt hour of power
woul d be added.

CO- CHAIR BI SHOP asked to clarify that the term peak-peak neant
BLHP woul d have nore water to neet the peak power demand.

MR. GRIFFI TH answered yes. He explained that Bradl ey Lake woul d
have nore water, put power capacity was limted by BLHP s
gener at ors.

SENATOR W ELECHOWEKI asked how long the Battle Creek project
woul d take to conplete if full funding was provided.

MR GRIFFITH replied that the diversion work could start next

summer or fall. He explained that the project was a sinple
diversion with no drilling required.
8:32:45 AM

SENATE | SE COW TTEE -12- February 28, 2013



SENATOR M CCICHE asked if M. Giffith could quantify his
optimsm for inprovenent in Cook Inlet gas supplies. He noted
that he was struggling with M. Giffith's previous conment.

MR CGRIFFITH replied that he had also struggled with Cook Inlet
gas supplies for many years. He stated that many experts had
informed himthat a ot of gas existed and it was a matter of
finding it. He explained that it would take 16 to 18 wells per
year at a cost of $10 mllion to $20 mllion. He said he would
remain optimstic if the state continued to foster drilling
t hrough a tax arrangenent.

SENATOR M CCICHE agreed with M. Giffith that not enough wells
were being drilled. He stated that three large Cook Inlet fields
had supplied the entire basin for 40 years and a fourth was not
likely. He remarked that the activity needed to keep up with the
decline curve was hot happening and the region had a natural gas
probl em

MR. GRIFFITH replied that he agreed.

SENATOR M CCICHE stated that he hoped there would be gas
di scoveries to extend the critical-intersection. He said he
struggled with M. Giffith's coment that diesel was the best
option when its cost was three to four tinmes higher than natural
gas.

MR GRIFFITH replied that a long term solution to use inported
gas would easily beat diesel, but that concept would be an
anathema for the legislature. He said gas from the North Sl ope
was years away and it was too late for coal or hydro. He stated
that diesel nmade sense in the next three to five year period. He
noted that propane would probably beat diesel, but he was
working on its feasibility.

8:36:32 AM
SENATOR M CCl CHE asked to confirm that sone Cook Inlet utilities
were considering inporting LNG as a short term option.

MR. GRIFFI TH answered yes. He remarked that he was a nenber of
the group considering the inported LNG option. He noted that the
turbines for the plant being considered for LNG could seam essly
switch to diesel. He said MEA was also looking for a less
expensive diesel fuel supply. He reiterated that all energy
options were on the table.

SENATE | SE COW TTEE -13- February 28, 2013



SENATOR M CClI CHE responded that he appreciated M. Giffith's
comments. He stated that assisting M. Giffith's efforts was
inportant to the conmttee.

MR GCRI FFl TH t hanked the conmmittee.

CO-CHAIR BI SHOP thanked M. Giffith and M. Sheffield for their
present ati ons.

8:38: 13 AM

There being no further business to cone before the Senate In-
State Energy Conmittee, Co-Chair Bishop adjourned the neeting at
8:38 a.m

SENATE | SE COW TTEE -14- February 28, 2013



